The Davenport Times

When A. W. Lee acquired his second lowa
paper —the Davenport Daily Times —he fol-
lowed the Ottumwa pattern: buy the weakest pa-
per, establish business principles, and build it into
the strongest paper In the community. Eighteen
months later, to insure the success of the Times, he
chose E. P. Adler to head up his new venture.

When Adler arrived in Davenport on January
19, 1901, he found the Times one of ten daily
papers then being published in what Is now known
as the Quad-Cities. Davenport alone possessed
five struggling newspapers. The stalwarts were
the Democrat, a pioneer product of the Richard-
son family; and Dev Demokrat, spokesman for the
large German population of the area.

Humble had been the beginnings of the Daily
Times, stemming as It did from the Blue Ribbon
News, a temperance journal launched in 1878. A
year later E. W. Brady bought it and renamed It
the Northwestern News. It was a weekly until
1886 when Brady and his sons converted it into
the Davenport Daily Times.

The four-page sheet of that time, confined
largely to local news, a few advertisements, and
some telegraph items which came to the office In
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plate form, seems Insignificant, indeed, compared
to the Daily Times of today with Its average of 32
pages, Its wealth of local, national, international
news and features, and Its advertising running
more than 1,100,000 lines a month.

In spite of competition, the Times managed to
keep Its head above water and even outgrew Its
river front location and had moved to Brady Street
between Second and Third when Lee and Charles
D. Reimers, his managing editor, bought the paper
in June, 1899, for $20,000.

Out of Adler’ brain and heart and energy the
new Times was erected on a firm foundation. The
beams of that structure were strong, weathering
many a storm In those early days, and as the years
passed and the Times grew and prospered, the
strain diminished.

Meanwhile a partnership was being formed,
recognized but unwritten, the partnership of a
newspaper and a community, each serving the
other In a relationship based on mutual respect and
honor. A city, a journalistic enterprise, and a man
had spread roots together, mindful of the heritage
of the past, fulfilling obligations of the present,
looking confidently to the morrow’s challenge.

As the new management began to plow money
Into the venture, Installing the newest and best
equipment available, in conformity with its pledge
to provide “the best newspaper that can be pub-
lished at a profit,” the seeds planted by A. W.
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Lee began to bear fruit. The paper’s circulation
grew with each new linotype machine, and when
announcement was made of the installation of a
“monster three deck” press In February, 1904, the
Times had boosted its circulation fivefold. It was
definitely on the march; In that same month It was
able to accept a minimum 12,000-inch advertising
contract from the city’s largest department store as
recognition of its leadership In the field.

The secret of the growth of the Times (as well
as other Lee papers) was that of men as well as
equipment. Of the papers edited by these able,
loyal, and courageous men, Adler once wrote:

Published In their own buildings, with the best
mechanical equipment, they are newspapers In the
best sense of the word, fearless, straightforward,
fighting fairly and steadfastly for the best interests
of the communities in which they are published,
and publishing all the news, especially the local
news, all the time.”

The deep sense of responsibility to the commu-
nity which supported them has been a distinguish-
Ing mark of the Lee papers. Nowhere was this
spirit exemplified more impressively than In Eman-
uel Philip Adler’s record of public service during
the half-century he shaped the destinies of the
Daily Times. When Adler died on March 2
1949, he was mourned as Davenport’s “First Citl-
zen” and the monuments to his memory will stand
for many years In structures of steel and stone.
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The contributions of E. P. Adler to the city that
had been good to him were many and bountiful.
The Visiting Nurses Cottage was In memory of
his sister, Betty Adler Waterman. His financial
ald pioneered Cram Field and Municipal Airport
named In honor of Ralph Cram, the beloved
‘Flying Editor" of the Davenport Democrat. He
helped sponsor the committees which laid the
foundations of the city's industrial growth, cli-
maxed by bringing both Alcoa and Case plants to
the Davenport area. When St. Ambrose College
announced a $400,000 building campaign, his
leadership led to the raising of $60,000 among the
non-Catholic friends of the Institution.

At the age of seventy-five Adler unselfishly as-
sumed the chairmanship of a drive to expand St.
Luke's hospital, an Episcopal institution. Its orig-
inal goal of $650,000 did not measure up to the
thinking of E. P. Adler, nor his capacity to do big
things, so he set about personally to secure sub-
scriptions In such amounts as to spark and Inspire
an effort which doubled the original goal. Always
the most generous giver to any community project,
E. P. Adler was never content except as his per-
sonal effort matched his check.

The test of his courage and resourcefulness
came with the failure of the state’s largest bank
and the leadership he gave to organize a new Insti-
tution, which, with assets of $12,000,000, was able
to meet the financial needs of the community when
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President Roosevelt declared the national bank
holiday In 1933. Today the bank he organized In
the depression has resources of over $80,000,000.

Adler always modestly attributed any success
he may have had to the faith in him of one man —
A. W. Lee. He had been no less true to a personal
code learned In his Ottumwa home from his father,
who acted as lay rabbi on Jewish holy days. It
was the heritage of the sons of Meyer Amschul
Rothschild, from the old patriarch of that great
family of Frankfort: “To walk with dignity, to
deal fairly, and to live with honor." This E. P.
Adler did throughout a long life.

As on the Ottumwa Courier, so on the Daven-
port Times, Adler surrounded himself with able
lieutenants. Born In Muscatine in 1888, Ralph J.
Leysen worked on the Muscatine Journal from
1906 to 1922, when Adler brought him to the Dav-
enport Times as managing editor.

When Philip D. Adler succeeded his father as
publisher of the Times In 1949, he came with many
experiences and honors. At the University of
lowa he was editor of the Daily lowan and presi-
dent of the Western Conference editors. Follow-
Ing his graduation from college In 1926 he became
editor-publisher of the Kewanee Star-Courier.
In the brief time that he has served the Davenport
community, Philip Adler has demonstrated quali-
ties of unusual ability and leadership.

Ralph J. Leysen



